
Page 1 of 3 

 

 City Council Meeting and Workshop 

November 3, 2014 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Executive Session 

a. Discussion regarding an Economic Development matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6) (C) – (20 minutes). 

b. Discussion regarding an Economic Development matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6) (C) – (20 minutes). 

B. Date for Informational Meeting on Downtown Auburn Transportation Center – Clint Deschene (20 

minutes). 

C. Expenditure Cap Ordinance Amendment Proposal – Jill Eastman (30 minutes) 
 

After each workshop item is presented, the public will be given an opportunity to comment. A total 

of ten minutes will be allotted for public comment after each item is presented. 

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Gerry 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

1. Order 91-11032014*  
Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks for the November 4, 2014 Election. 

 

II.    Minutes   

 October 16, 2014 Special Council Meeting 

 October 20, 2014 Regular Council Meeting 

 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report – Food Day Proclamation  

 

City Manager’s Report  

 ATRC organization update 

 Norway Savings Bank Arena Quarterly Report 

 Committee Reports 

 Transportation 

o Lewiston Auburn Transit – Councilor Gerry 

o Airport, Railroad – Councilor Hayes 

o Bike-Ped Committee – Councilor Lee 

 Housing 

o Community Development Block Grant, Neighborhood Stabilization Program, 

Auburn Housing Authority – Councilor Gerry 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 November 3, 2014 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 Economic Development 

o L-A Economic Growth Council, Auburn Business Development Corporation – 

Councilor Lee  

 Education 

o Auburn School Committee – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Auburn Public Library – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Great Falls TV – Councilor Young  

 Environmental Services 

o Auburn Water District, Auburn Sewerage District – Councilor Crowley 

o Mid-Maine Waste Action Corp. – Councilor Walker 

 Recreation 

o Recreation and Special Events Advisory Board – Councilor Crowley 

 Public Safety 

o LA 911 – Councilor Walker 

             City Councilors’ Reports               

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

 

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

2. Ordinance 09-10202014 

Adopting the General Assistance Appendices B and C (food and rent) as required by State 

Statute.  Public hearing and second and final reading.   
 

VII.     New Business 

 

3. Order 92-11032014 

Authorizing the demolition of a dangerous building located at 33 South Goff Street. 

Public Hearing. 

 

4. Order 93-11032014 

Authorizing the City Manager to execute a deed for the sale of a portion of 143 Hampshire Street 

and 325 Turner Street. 

 

5. Order 94-11032014 

Authorizing the payment of $10,000 for land acquisition of 261 Main Street. 

 

6. Resolve 11-11032014  
Supporting the addition of extra members to the Lewiston-Auburn Bike-Ped Committee.  

 

VIII. Executive Session  

 

 Discussion regarding an personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(A). 

Possible action to follow. 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 November 3, 2014 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 Discussion regarding an Economic Development matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C). 

Possible action to follow. 

 

IX.  Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                             City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation 

or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 

interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to 

the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the 

State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to 

those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: 11-3-2014  

 

  Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding Economic Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: 11-3-2014  

 

  Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding Economic Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject: Downtown Auburn Transportation Center (“DATC”) Public Hearing and Input 

 

Information: In accordance with the schedule (see attached) the Council is to review the materials regarding 

the location of the DATC back at Great Falls Plaza.  Also attached are five (5) maps.  What these depict are as 

follows: 

 Map #1 (Existing Conditions):  The current lots overlaid on a photo of the area. 

Map #2 (Historical Subdivision):  The last known plan to layout the property for development.  This 

design required exchanges of land and new road infrastructure.  This concept was never recorded but 

was approved at the Planning Board. 

Map #3 (First Concept):  During the meetings to determine where to place the building we met with 

design team and toured the property and maps.  This is the map that was created in concept to share with 

area businesses for input and parking impacts.   

Map #4 (Recommended Concept):  Map#3 was shared and it led to some good recommendations.  The 

suggestions were to place the building near the future parking garage and where during today’s 

conditions would have almost no impact on “priority” parking. 

Map #5 (Existing Conditions with Recommended Concept):  In order to provide a clear picture of what 

will occur until the subdivision is developed this map is being provided to fully understand. 

 

Staff is recommending Map #4 and Map #5.  As of development of this agenda packet a final meeting with the 

design group has not occurred and some minor changes are anticipated.  So the Council and public should 

expect to see a revised map at the Monday Meeting. 

 

Understand at this stage the Council is being asked to call a hearing for the public to comment on the plan.  

Please share your own but to progress this building the next step is to have the hearing. 

 

 

Advantages: 1. Places the building back in original location.  2.  Minimal traffic impact.  3.  Creates a 

developable concept for the future of the area.  4.  Does not impact the future storm drainage replacement. 

 

 

Disadvantages:  1. Until full development the property is sitting towards the back of the lot.  2.  The 

construction cost estimate predicts a high per square foot cost.   

 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: Setting the hearing has no impact.  However the required match if the Council 

proceeds after the hearing will cost $143,592 of TIF proceeds. 

 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Set a hearing for November 20
th

 at 6:00 pm. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: 10/06/2014 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 11/3/2014  Order   

Author:   Clint Deschene, City Manager 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

Attachments: Schedule 

  Five (5) maps. 

  Maximum budget estimate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PROJECTED MAXIMUM BUDGET DATC 

October 30, 2014 
 
RE:  Potential Budget DATC at Great Falls Plaza 
 
Since the exact site is still to be determined the estimated budget is based upon the amount of local 
matching funds required to meet the federal funds available.  The maximum budget based upon all 
funds available is $746,000: 
 
Maximum budget 
(includes funds already expended on appraisals and Casco Bay Engineering)                 $746,000 
 
Federal Share (80% of budget)                                                            $596,800 
 
Local Share (20% of budget)                                      $149,200 
 
Expended to Date:                                                                                    $  28,041 
 
Federal Share                                                                                                              $  22,433 
 
Local Share                                                                                                                     $    5,608 
($4,496 paid by Auburn, $1,112 paid by LATC) 
 
Balance Available for Project:                                                                                               $717,959 
 
Federal Share                                                                                                             $574,367 
 
Local Share                                                                                                                            $143,592 
 
Thus, assuming the projects stays within the maximum budget; the City of Auburn will need to 
appropriate $143,592.   
 
 



Downtown Auburn Transportation 
Center (“DATC”) 

SCHEDULE (dates could change) 
 

September 26th, 2014   Meeting of MDOT, LATC, Auburn Staff 
 
September 30th, 2014   Sub-committee on building Site.  MDOT, LATC, Auburn Staff 
 
October 17th, 2014   Meeting of MDOT, LATC, Auburn Staff 
 
November 3rd, 2014   Council Meeting to set Informational Meeting 
 
November 20th, 2014   Informational Meeting of Public 
 
December 1st,     Council Meeting Adopting Plan 
 



TIM
CORPORATION

GFP
DEVELOPMENT

CO LLC

RIVERWATCH
LLC

AUBURN
HOUSING

AUTHORITY

MAINE
CENTRAL
RAILROAD

AUBURN
CITY OF

City of Auburn
Maine

This map was created by Auburn's GIS  Department. While 
every effort has been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of Auburn cannot accept 
any responsibility for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no warranties which 
accompany this product. Data may be from secondary
sources and may be unverified. Users of the information 
displayed onthis map are strongly cautioned to verify all 
information before making 

Great Falls Plaza

0 30 60 Feet

Existing Property Lines

²

Existing Property Lines



Lot 3
(Future)

Lot 5

Lot 2

Lot 4
(Future)

Lot 1
(Future)

Existing
Lot

City of Auburn
Maine

This map was created by Auburn's GIS  Department. While 
every effort has been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of Auburn cannot accept 
any responsibility for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no warranties which 
accompany this product. Data may be from secondary
sources and may be unverified. Users of the information 
displayed onthis map are strongly cautioned to verify all 
information before making 

Great Falls Plaza

0 30 60 Feet

2009 Plan Property Lines

²

2009 Plan Property Lines



City of Auburn
Maine

This map was created by Auburn's GIS  Department. While 
every effort has been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of Auburn cannot accept 
any responsibility for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no warranties which 
accompany this product. Data may be from secondary
sources and may be unverified. Users of the information 
displayed onthis map are strongly cautioned to verify all 
information before making 

Great Falls Plaza

0 30 60 Feet

Proposal 1

²

Form Code Concept Streets
Bus Station - Proposal 1



Lot 2

Existing
Lot

Lot 3

Lot 5

Lot 4

Lot 1

Bus
Station

Parking
Garage

City of Auburn
Maine

This map was created by Auburn's GIS  Department. While 
every effort has been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of Auburn cannot accept 
any responsibility for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no warranties which 
accompany this product. Data may be from secondary
sources and may be unverified. Users of the information 
displayed onthis map are strongly cautioned to verify all 
information before making 

Great Falls Plaza

0 30 60 Feet

New Proposal

²
Existing Stormwater Pipe
Parking Garage - Proposal 2
Bus Station - Proposal 2
New Plan Property Lines



TIM
CORPORATION

GFP
DEVELOPMENT

CO LLC

RIVERWATCH
LLC

AUBURN
HOUSING

AUTHORITY

MAINE
CENTRAL
RAILROAD

AUBURN
CITY OF

Bus
Station

City of Auburn
Maine

This map was created by Auburn's GIS  Department. While 
every effort has been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of Auburn cannot accept 
any responsibility for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no warranties which 
accompany this product. Data may be from secondary
sources and may be unverified. Users of the information 
displayed onthis map are strongly cautioned to verify all 
information before making 

Great Falls Plaza

0 30 60 Feet

New Proposal

²

Bus Station - Proposal 2
Existing Property Lines



 
 
 

Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 
Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

RESOLVE ORDINANCE xx-11032014 
 
 

 
 

 Sec. 8.6. - Appropriation and revenue resolve. 

[A.] 

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year the city council shall adopt an annual appropriation resolve making 
appropriations by department, fund, service, strategy, or other organizational unit and authorizing an allocation for 
each program or activity. Also included in the appropriation resolve will be the tax due dates, interest rate on 
delinquent taxes and the tax mil rate for the fiscal year.  

 

[B.] 

Before any new revenues may be collected to fund the budget, including taxes and changes in existing fees, the city 
council shall authorize such revenues by an annual revenue resolve.  

 
 



 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, that 

the City Council proposes that the municipal revenue sharing be reinstated to what it should be according to the 

law, before any expansion of any unnecessary State programs; and 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, that 

the City Council hereby expresses its strong opposition to the State not meeting it’s legal obligation to the 

municipality; and 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, that 

the City Council proposes that the State of Maine recalibrate the Revenue Sharing Program to account for the 

increased costs associated with being a Service Center Community; 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to provide copies of this RESOLVE to the 

members of the Legislature representing the City of Auburn, members of the Appropriations and Taxation 

Committees, the Governor, the Speaker of the House, the President of the Senate and the Legislative leadership. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 







Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE ORDINANCE XX-0422201411032014 

 

Sec. 2-485. Council action on budget increase.  

(a) 

Budget expenditure tax commitment cap. Beginning with the fiscal year 2008 2016 budget, the city 

council will not approve any increase in the budget tax commitment, City and School combined, 

which exceeds the consumer price index (urban) as compiled for the 12-month period ending as of 

December 31 prior the start of the succeeding fiscal year. 

 

(b) 

Exception. When deemed necessary by the city council, this provision may be waived by a majority 

vote of the city council. 

(Ord. of 5-21-2007) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
          











Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 91-11032014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following individuals to fill the vacant Warden and 

Ward Clerk positions for the November 4, 2014 Election: 

 

Rick Duchesneau   Ward Clerk  Ward 4    Fairview School 

Jolene Girouard   Warden Central Processing  Auburn Hall 

Jan Biron    Ward Clerk Central Processing  Auburn Hall 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









CITY OF AUBURN 

 

Office of the Mayor and  

City Council 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

FOOD DAY PROCLAMATION FOR THE CITY OF AUBURN 

 

 

WHEREAS, the health and well-being of our citizens is of primary concern for the City of Auburn; and 

 

WHEREAS, promoting safer, healthier diets is a critical factor in improving citizens’ overall health and 

quality of life and local organizations such as the St. Mary’s Nutrition Center are supporting area 

residents in learning how to create healthier, locally sourced meals at home; and 

 

WHEREAS, supporting sustainable family farms, farm stands, farmers’ markets and local agriculture 

benefits the local economy and Auburn is home to many including Valley View Farm, Bell Farms, 

South Auburn Organic Farm, Wallingford’s and others in addition to farm stands like the well-known 

Blackie’s and access to nearby markets like the blossoming Bates Mill 5 Farmers’ Market in Lewiston; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, obtaining fair pay and safe conditions for food and farm workers is beneficial for both the 

producer and consumer so that the food we produce and consume is safe and fair for all and training the 

farmers of today and tomorrow is a top priority for our community centered on efforts like those of 

Lewiston-based Lots to Gardens, Portland-based Cultivating Community and the Auburn School 

Department to connect the science and business planning of agriculture to those residents in our 

community that aspire to make their living on the land; and 

 

WHEREAS, expanding access to food and reducing hunger is of critical importance to aid those who 

live in food deserts and efforts led by Good Food Lewiston-Auburn, Auburn-based Good Shepherd 

Food Bank, and the growing food Back Pack initiative in our locals schools are modeling the way to 

support our local residents in overcoming this challenge; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor of the great City of Auburn, do hereby proclaim 

Friday, October 24, 2014 as FOOD DAY in the City of Auburn. 

 

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the Seal of the City of 

Auburn, this 24th day of October, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 





ATRC POLICY  
COMMITTEE MEETING 

Minutes of November 7, 2013 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
 Steve Eldridge Lisbon  
 Tracey Steuber Lisbon 
 Dave Jones Lewiston 
 Duane Scott MaineDOT  
 Bob Thompson AVCOG 
 Sara Zografos Maine Turnpike Authority 
 Howard Kroll Auburn  
 Ed Barrett Lewiston  
 Jonathan LaBonte Auburn 
    
STAFF AND OTHERS PRESENT  
 Joan Walton AVCOG/ATRC  
 Marsha Bennett AVCOG 
 Rick Lanman A-L Airport  
 Jennifer Williams ATRC 
  
   
1. Declaration of Quorum/Call to Order 

The Chair declared a quorum and called the meeting to order at 10:05 am.  It was agreed that the 
agenda items would be taken out of order to allow more time for one voting member to arrive. 

 
2. Communications, Updates & Information 

A. MaineDOT Updated Construction Advertise Schedule  
B. October 31, 2013 email from Theresa Savoy re:  Title IV (Beavercreek, Ohio) 
C.  November 7, 2013 email from Dan Goyette re:  Minot Avenue bin wall 

 

5. Title VI/Environmental Justice Non-Discrimination Plan 
ATRC must submit a Title IV Non-Discrimination Plan to MaineDOT on an annual basis.  Steve 
Eldridge made a motion to accept the plan and forward it to MaineDOT.  Howard Kroll seconded 
the motion which passed 6-0. 
 

6. TIP Amendment/Funds Transfer Request 
The City of Auburn has requested an additional $510,000 towards Phase II of the South Main 
Street Reconstruction.  Dave Jones made a motion to table Phase II of this project, based on the 
email request from Dan Goyette (Agenda Item 2C.)  Howard Kroll seconded the motion, which 
passed 6-0.  Dave Jones then made a motion, pending availability of funds and proper PIN 
language, to move $100,000 from the ATRC holding pin for the South Main Street project.  Steve 
Eldridge seconded the motion which passed 6-0.   
 

3. ATRC 20- Year Transportation Plan 
Staff is currently updating the ATRC Long-Range Transportation Plan.  This is a 20-year plan, 
updated every five years, and is due to be updated by December 31, 2013.  At this time, staff is 
recommending that ATRC complete a minor technical update of our long-range plan, to remain in 
compliance, with a more in-depth update to be undertaken after the State has developed its 
performance targets.  Part of this minor update includes revising the list of projects which can 
realistically be funded based on anticipated revenues over the next 20 years.  The shaded areas 
of the list provided are the projects Auburn has suggested be dropped.  Policy Committee 
members were asked if they should be kept on the list or removed. 



 
Jonathan LaBonte arrived at 10:13 am. 
 
It was agreed that the Lewiston/Auburn Downtown Connector/MTA Interchange Environmental 
Assessment, Design and Construction project can be dropped because there is another Exit 80 
task that covers the Lewiston side. 
 
Steve Eldridge said Lisbon does not agree with the last sentence of the Route 196/Bypass 
Feasibility Study/Environmental Assessment project because the consensus among Lisbon 
businesses and town officials is to not support a bypass of Route 196. 
 
Dave Jones made a motion to approve the draft 20-year plan project list.  Steve Eldridge 
seconded the motion and discussion followed. 
 
Jonathan LaBonte said the Exit 75 Improvements project should be removed because the Maine 
Turnpike Authority does not have it in its plans.  Jonathan LaBonte made a motion to strike all 
references to Kittyhawk Avenue from the Exit 75 Improvements project.  There was no second to 
this motion. Jonathan LaBonte made a motion to strike the reconfiguration of Exit 75 from the 
description. Howard Kroll seconded the motion, which passed 7-0. 
 
Sara Zografos said the MTA should be recognized in the opening sentence because MTA is a 
major funder for this project along with MaineDOT.  Jonathan LaBonte made a motion to revise 
the opening paragraph to acknowledge the MTA. Steve Eldridge seconded the motion and the 
motion passed 7-0. 
 
It was noted that the typographical error should be corrected on the title of the Bernard Lown 
Peace Bridge project.  Howard Kroll said the New Auburn study recommendations should be 
added to the end of the Bernard Lown Peace Bridge project description. 
 
The motion to approve the draft UPWP was passed by a 7-0 vote. 
 

4. 2014-2015 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
Jennifer Williams explained that the Draft 2014-2015 UPWP was developed based on input from 
the communities.  Changes made since the last draft was reviewed by the Policy Committee 
includes a 50/50 split on the staff/consultant time for the Complete Streets task, increased 
amounts in some tasks after talking to Penny Vaillancourt at MaineDOT about performance 
measures for the long-range plan, and changed the amounts of some tasks after receiving input 
from some of the ATRC communities. 
 
Dave Jones made a motion to adopt the UPWP.  Steve Eldridge seconded the motion.  
Discussion followed. 
 
Jonathan LaBonte said that $80,000 of the Complete Streets tasks should go towards 
consultants.  David Jones asked if the intention was for $0 to go towards staff.  Jonathan Labonte 
said that AVCOG staff was already being paid through Task 1.  This is a cities initiative so city 
staff will be involved.  Having $80,000 for consultant work will increase the quality of the product; 
we don’t need to add another level of administrative costs on top of city staff. 
 
David Jones said he did not agree, there should be sufficient funds in the task to do the work.  He 
asked if the $40,000 allocated to staff for the Complete Streets task was for administration or to 
do the work. Jennifer Williams said it was for staff to do some of the work.  The consultant will 
focus on recommendations for implementation and staff will be involved in data collection, public 
input/outreach, and other background type work to let the consultant focus on the “big” items.  
Jonathan LaBonte said he was comfortable going to a $60,000 consultant and $20,000 staff split 



to allow some AVCOG work but most of the data collection should have been done in previous 
years’ efforts.  Jennifer Williams outlined the consultant process for this task.  Jonathan LaBonte 
made a motion to change the numbers on this task to $60,000 consultant and $20,000 staff.  
Howard Kroll seconded the motion which failed 2-5. 
 
Jonathan LaBonte said ATRC should build a contingency fund so we have resources to bring in 
expertise.  Steve Eldridge and Dave Jones both disagreed and said ATRC staff provides a level 
of expertise to the work plan.     
 
Jonathan LaBonte questioned what is being spent on signal management and why is signal 
management part of multiple tasks?  How much is really being spent on signal management? 
 
Jennifer Williams questioned what other tasks fund signal management?  No other tasks were 
identified that include funding for signal management. 
 
David Jones asked Jonathan LaBonte to be more specific. 
 
Ed Barrett asked if approximately ½ of Jason’s time goes into signal management.  Jennifer 
Williams said that was accurate. 
 
Ed Barrett asked Jennifer Williams to talk about ATRC doing something jointly with PACTS 
regarding signal management software purchase and management.  Jennifer said staff has 
spoken to PACTS staff a couple of times, as recently as this morning, and PACTS is not at the 
same point ATRC is and it will be a couple of years before it will upgrade its software and be able 
to consider working jointly with ATRC. 
 
David Jones asked if ATRC needs to upgrade its software now.  Jennifer Williams said yes; our 
software is virtually obsolete at this point, and it is expected that the supplier will no longer 
provide service for the TrafficWare software by 2014 or 2015 at the latest.  Jonathan LaBonte 
asked if PACTS is unwilling to share the software with ATRC.  Jennifer said no, not they are not 
willing, but that they are not ready.  Jonathan LaBonte said he would like to see a cost-benefit 
analysis for this.  David Jones said ATRC needs to continue on the path we’re on.  Ed Barrett 
asked if ATRC could continue discussions with PACTS and offer them to come on board when 
they are ready.  Jennifer Williams said yes, ATRC will continue discussions with PACTS and 
make that offer in the future. 
 
Jonathan LaBonte said ATRC needs to build contingency for targeted expertise.  Jonathan 
LaBonte made a motion to cut ½ in-house funding for Task 2 and delegate that ½ to contingency.  
Howard Kroll seconded the motion and discussion followed. 
 
Jennifer Williams explained that Task 2 used to be part of Task 1.  It has now been broken out 
into its own task to differentiate between administrative tasks and work that takes more than 15-
minutes but less than 20-hours to accomplish.  Examples of a task that would fall under Task 2 
are review of the Maine Turnpike toll increase proposal and the reviewing the impacts of a 
potential closure of West Hardscrabble Road. 
 
Jonathan LaBonte said he wants to see some money set aside for targeted studies that Auburn 
wants to hire consultants for, not AVCOG staff; task 2 seems to be a “catch-all” and there needs 
to be a contingency for targeted expertise.  David Jones and Steve Eldridge both disagreed and 
said ATRC staff provides valuable assistance. 
 
Howard Kroll said he is a firm believer in having a contingency fund.  It is nothing against staff but 
ATRC should have approximately 5-10% of the budget in contingency for the four communities.  
The contingency should be built into the budget, not left over from other tasks. 



 
Jonathan LaBonte said we should table the whole thing and Auburn can move forward with its 
projects because ATRC does not ask for projects for the UPWP.  David Jones said we do that 
every year.  Jonathan LaBonte said there is no opportunity for Auburn to bring forth proposals – 
period.  Ed Barrett and Bob Thompson said ATRC has requested projects for UPWP projects on 
numerous occasions.  Jonathan LaBonte said Auburn has made specific requests for a Minot 
Avenue land use-transportation study and it hasn’t been included.  Jennifer Williams said Auburn 
submitted one or two sentence tasks that were very basic with very little information, and no 
follow-up.  Pages 26-28 of the draft UPWP have three tasks that were submitted by Auburn with 
no scopes, no details and no budget.   Jonathan LaBonte said Jennifer Williams never asked for 
more information.  Jennifer Williams said she asked for more information from the city in February 
and March and she is still waiting for it. 
 
Vote on the motion to cut ½ in-house funding for Task 2 and delegate it to contingency failed 0-5 
(Howard Kroll and Jonathan LaBonte did not vote). 
 
Duane Scott asked if references to MaineDOT’s 6-year plan could be changed to long-range 
planning effort.   It was agreed that change could be made. 
 
Duane Scott made a motion to delete 6-Year Plan references, convert fiscal year references to 
calendar year, and add long-range plan support to be more generic in Task 3.  Steve Eldridge 
seconded the motion with passed 6-0 (Jonathan LaBonte did not vote). 
 
Regarding Task 9, Ed Barrett asked if LATC is required to update the transit study every five 
years or is the timing of the updates at our discretion.  Marsha Bennett said there is no specific 
time requirement for updating the transit study. 
 
At the local level, the question of is LATC the best management entity for the transit system has 
come up, with suggestion to do a management study in lieu of the transit system study. 
 
Duane Scott said the transit study it is very important to MaineDOT and FTA and it is not 
appropriate to not do the 5-year update in lieu of a management study. He questioned if this was 
the best task for the ATRC rather than the cities.  Jonathan LaBonte said the cities should not 
have to fund the management study because this is part of ATRC’s function.  Duane Scott said 
what we already have here is important, it does not seem appropriate to switch it out for a 
management study.  Jonathan LaBonte asked if that was coming from on high.  Duane Scott said 
that statement was coming from himself. 
 
Ed Barrett said it seems like there is a strong desire on the part of MaineDOT and FTA to do 
these transit studies but they are not required.  Marsha Bennett said LATC does interim studies 
for new issues, such as the Veteran’s Administration building on Challenger Drive, to reassess 
what the system offers as conditions change.   
 
Bob Thompson asked if the study addresses what to do with fleet problems? 
 
Marsha Bennett said the updated transit study will add performance measures, develop a capital 
plan and make recommendations for overall improvements in the system.  The plan will also 
address other requirements, such as Environmental Justice. 
 
A management/organizational study should look at other organizational models that may be more 
effective. Jonathan LaBonte possible a separate transit district, or partnerships with some of the 
southern Maine agencies. 
  



Bob Thompson asked how much an organizational study would cost.  There was no answer.  He 
suggested that we try to define it and find costs but it can be an amendment to the plan. 
 
Jonathan LaBonte said we need to address the management structure first, then talk about 
routes.  One-hour headways will not build a city.  People are moving to communities where there 
are transit systems that meet the needs of the population that wants to use transit, not just those 
that must use it. 
 
David Jones made a motion to adopt with the footnote that the intention is to study short-term and 
long-term routing, management and organizational structure.  Howard Kroll seconded the motion 
which passed 7-0. 
 
Vote on the original motion to adopt the UPWP passed 7-0. 
 

7. Current UPWP Studies/Tasks Update 

 New Auburn Study – The project is in a holding pattern to allow for an economic analysis 
because the road network is interrupting development, may want to go back to the grid 
system so more can be done with the buildings.  The next meeting is scheduled for 
November 21st. 

 TDL – This is an ongoing task. Staff is finalizing the survey. 
 

8. Other Business - Updates 

 Maine Turnpike Authority - Sara Zografos reported that the Army Corps of Engineers has 
issued the permit for Exit 80 improvements.  The construction contract will be awarded at 
the MTA meeting in December. Sara will send a copy of the permit and mitigation plan. 

 Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee - Marsha Bennett reported that the Spring Street bus 
station project received 2 proposals; the review committee will meet tomorrow to score the 
proposals.  The Mountain Explorer buses will be returning to the mountains at the end of 
November.  Metro in Portland may be able to help LATC with some spare buses it has. 

 Jonathan LaBonte said MTA is reviewing its sign policy and Auburn will be working with 
MTA to make sure there is adequate signage.  Currently, there is no way to know that 
Auburn has a downtown when you’re on the turnpike.  Sara Zografos said the MTA will be 
taking the sign policy to the legislature in March or April 2014.  She said MaineDOT is 
taking the lead on the sign project but suggested that Peter Merfeld can come to an ATRC 
meeting to present the policy, possibly before the policy is finalized. 

 Reminder of the public meeting for the statewide strategic transit plan, December 10th at 
Auburn Public Library 

 
9. Upcoming Meetings 

Technical Committee: November 14, 2013 
Policy Committee:   November 21, 2013 (If needed) 
    December TBD 
 
There is no need for a Policy Committee meeting on November 21st.  The next Policy Committee 
meeting will be a combined meeting with the Technical Committee.  Federal Highway 
Administration and MaineDOT will be invited to follow-up on recent discussions regarding ADA 
improvements as part of signal system upgrades and cost participation for crosswalk amenities.  
It was agreed that the Lewiston-Auburn Joint Bicycle-Pedestrian Committee should be invited to 
this meeting. It was also agreed that the MTA sign policy could be a good topic. Tentative date 
was set for December 12th. 
  
Adjournment – Dave Jones made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Howard Kroll seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously.  Meeting was adjourned at 11:25 am. 



ATRC POLICY  
COMMITTEE MEETING 

Minutes of October 24, 2013 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
 Bob Thompson AVCOG 
 Sara Devlin Maine Turnpike Authority 
 Howard Kroll Auburn  
 Andrew Gilmore Sabattus 
 Tracey Steuber Lisbon 
 Steve Eldridge Lisbon  
 Duane Scott MaineDOT  
 Jonathan LaBonte Auburn 
 Ed Barrett Lewiston  
 Phil Nadeau Lewiston 
    
STAFF AND OTHERS PRESENT  
 Jason Ready ATRC 
 Marsha Bennett AVCOG 
 Joan Walton AVCOG/ATRC 
 Carlos Pena FHWA 
 Rick Lanman A-L Airport  
 Clint Deschene Auburn 
 Nancy Grant Bicycle Coalition of Maine 
 Belinda Gerry Auburn 
 Jennifer Williams ATRC 
 John Adams Milone & MacBroom 
  
   
1. Declaration of Quorum/Call to Order 

The Chair declared a quorum and called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM. 
 

2. Minutes of August 1, 2013 
Jennifer Williams noted there was an error in item 7, with the discussion being repeated twice, 
and that would be corrected.  Ed Barrett asked that, given the intensity of discussion on item 9, 
the proposed changes that had been submitted by the City of Auburn and the final language of 
the Major Project Priorities be attached to the minutes. 
 

3. Communications, Updates & Information 
A. MaineDOT Updated Construction Advertise Schedule 

http://www.maine.gov/mdot/projects/workplan/monthly/  
B. MPO Capital Funding and the MaineDOT Work Plan Process 
C. Maine Transportation Conference – December 5, 2103 
D. October 23, 2013 Memo from C. Deschene to E. Barrett re: voting membership for Auburn 

 Roland Miller has resigned from the ATRC Policy Committee; Howard Kroll has been 
appointed as a voting member of the Policy Committee. Roland was the Vice-Chair, so a new 
Vice-Chair needs to be elected. Jonathan LaBonte nominated Howard Kroll; Steve Eldridge 
nominated Bob Thompson. Vote taken: Howard – 4; Bob – 4. (Howard did not vote). Second 
vote taken: Howard – 5; Bob – 4.  Howard Kroll now Vice-Chair. 

E. October 21, 2103 letter from E. Plourde to ATRC re: Airport as voting member.  This item will 
be placed on the next agenda for discussion/action. Jonathan LaBonte asked that the By-laws 
be included in the next agenda packet for this discussion. 

 

http://www.maine.gov/mdot/projects/workplan/monthly/


 
4. Traffic Signal Management System Comparison 

At a previous meeting, the question was asked if utilizing ATRC staff is most effective and 
efficient method for the signal management. It was also suggested that ATRC should look into 
coordinating with PACTS and using their consultants. (PACTS is using the same consultant that 
ATRC is using.) John Adams, of Milone & MacBroom, is on the consultant team that both ATRC 
and PACTS are using and provided an overview of how the signal management is working for 
both MPOs.  He started his presentation by noting to the Committee that ATRC probably has, 
with Jason Ready, one of the best engineers in the state for signal management right in house. 
When ATRC first began the TSMS in earnest, Jason was new and needed the guidance and 
direction; at this point, John Adams considers Jason to truly be a peer in the industry. John felt 
there is great benefit to the communities to have the in house expertise of regularly monitoring 
the signal operations, making adjustments as necessary, updating timing plans, and being able to 
get on-site quickly if when needed. ATRC relies on in-house expertise, with the consultant on 
stand-by for a second opinion and to help with larger projects. PACTS, on the other hand, relies 
solely on the consultant for all signal monitoring, updating of timing plans, etc. Both scenarios are 
effective, it really is a matter of preference for the MPO. Although, John has encouraged the 
PACTS RSMS sub-committee to look towards the ATRC model. This update was followed by 
some more specific questions/answers. Nancy Grant has if the software accommodates 
bicycles/pedestrians as well as motor vehicles. John indicated that the detection is not software 
dependent, and there are various new technologies for detection. The detection is then set up 
and managed through the system. J. LaBonte then asked MaineDOT and FHWA if the use of 
UPWP funds for operational tasks, like signal management, is an appropriate use of funds. D. 
Scott and C. Pena both stated that it is an appropriate use of funds, which BACTS also does. D. 
Scott added that for BACTS, it is a very collaborative effort, with BACTS staff, but the individual 
communities still have their staff involved in the day-to-day tasks. J. LaBonte asked that the 
TSMS costs be identified separately in the UPWP; he stated that there is a disconnect on the 
Auburn side. E. Barrett asked what the disconnect is so that Jason Ready can follow up; he also 
stated that no one in Lewiston is aware of a disconnect. C. Deschene asked about the timing of 
the investments with a new Complete Streets Policy – identifying infrastructure needs, software 
upgrades – what is the right order of investment? Or is it as we can afford it? He also stated that 
un-coordinated signals tend to be more bicycle/pedestrian friendly. John Adams indicated that 
there are some bicycle/pedestrian improvements, such as ADA compliance at intersections, that 
should be completed regardless of software or signal equipment upgrades, but then the upgrades 
can address the pedestrian signal heads, bicycle/pedestrian detection, etc. 
 

5. Traffic Signal Improvements 
The Technical Committee is requesting clarification of what was intended for the set aside of $1 
million as a TIP amendment for “signal improvements”. Was it the intent of the Policy Committee 
for these signal improvements to include ADA compliance, bump-outs at intersections, new 
crosswalks, etc? Or would some of those type of improvements be considered as sidewalk and 
pedestrian improvements? This clarification will help the Technical Committee finalize their 
recommendations of how to implement and prioritize the signal upgrades. J. LaBonte stated that 
Auburn and the Bike/Ped Committee had provided comments during the TIP process regarding 
bike/ped improvements, and that those were Auburn’s recommendations. E. Barrett asked Jason 
Ready to provide some background information on the draft recommendations prepared by the 
Technical Committee. Those recommendations are: 

1) Software upgrade – we have has the software since 1998 and are managing, but 
it is outdated and soon to be obsolete, with and end of life of 2014 and likely end 
of service in 2015; 

2) Russell/Main – eliminate 1 drop and add detection; which is in line with the goals 
of a) reducing monthly costs to cities by reducing number of drops and b) 
improving bike/ped detection with video; 

3) Auburn Mall/Center to Turner/Union – eliminate 1 drop and upgrade 



4) Mt. Auburn signals – connect into system via radio communication 
5) Turner/Hampshire – bring into system and add detection; 

J. LaBonte stated that Auburn would like to shift the resources from 
Turner/Hampshire to Court/Pleasant, and that Auburn is supportive of the rest of 
the improvements, including the software upgrades. He said there was no 
advance notice and that there is not any type of regional CIP to maintain/invest in 
the system. E. Barrett asked that the consultant recommendations be passed on 
to both cities staff. He also asked if the recommendations include ADA upgrades. 
Jason stated that some do, but not all, based on the most recent DOJ/DOT/FHWA 
“rules”. P. Nadeau asked if, for example, the proposed Lisbon St and East Ave 
improvements include ADA compliance upgrades. John Adams stated that those 
improvements were fiber only and would not trigger the ADA compliance, so no 
upgrades were included. 

6) Minot/Manley – pole replacement 
7) East Ave – fiber and detection 
8) Rte 196/Capital – left turn arrow 
9) Sabattus St – incorporate Sabattus St to Main St 

The end result will be one drop in Lewiston, one drop in Auburn, and a continuous fiber loop. 
C. Pena offered that FHWA could be invited for a presentation of ADA compliance changes. The 
group felt this could be a good topic for a joint meeting with the Technical Committee. E. Barrett 
reminded the Committee that we do have ~$250,000 set aside for sidewalk projects, and there is 
the potential to do more in the way of ADA upgrades. The Cities could look at various 
intersections and the possible use of those sidewalk funds. J. LaBonte again stated that Auburn 
is requesting to shift funds from Turner/Hampshire to Court/Pleasant to construct bump-outs and 
an enhanced crosswalk, which is using traffic control devices to accommodate pedestrian safety. 
E. Barrett asked if bump-outs, in pavement flashing LED’s, etc would qualify as ADA 
requirements. D. Scott offered that Theresa Savoy, MaineDOT, is the best person to speak with 
for ADA guidance. Jennifer Williams reminded the Committee that the Technical Committee is 
looking for clarification of what the intent of the one million as a TIP amendment for “signal 
improvements” is; is it for these signal improvements to include ADA compliance, plus  bump-outs 
at intersections, new crosswalks, etc? Or would some of those type of improvements be 
considered as sidewalk and pedestrian improvements? J. LaBonte asked what type of investment 
is eligible as a safety improvement. If improvements are aesthetic and not eligible for cost 
sharing, the City understands that. 
C. Deschene asked if what we are doing is cost effective, are we doing what PACTS is doing, 
and are we using the same software. John Adams replied that PACTS is also using the 
Streetwise software, and they are looking at ATMS.now (which is the same software ATRC is 
looking to upgrade to). J. LaBonte asked about the potential for a joint bid/shared license for the 
software. C. Deschene and P. Nadeau mentioned joint bid of hardware, too. E. Barrett asked if it 
was possible to have one system for both ATRC and PACTS. John Adams replied that the 
license cost is based on the number of signals, so a larger system = larger costs, but that the 
system could be run remotely. C. Deschene and J. LaBonte asked staff to look into that 
possibility, since PACTS is ahead of ATRC with bike detection. 
Jennifer Williams again reminded the Committee of the questions from the Technical Committee 
for clarification. E. Barrett suggested that Auburn provide a scope for Court/Pleasant to the 
Technical Committee and let the Technical Committee determine technology/safety needs vs. 
“extras”. Joan Walton reiterated the Technical Committee question of “Is a bump-out considered 
ADA requirement?” B. Thompson suggested going back to DOT/FHWA for guidance of ADA 
requirements as well as the cost-sharing questions. P. Nadeau stressed the point of clarifying if 
the bump-out is ADA; E. Barrett reminded the Committee of the separate pot of money for 
sidewalk/pedestrian improvements. 
Motion by Jonathan LaBonte to trade Turner/Hampshire improvements for Court/Pleasant (if 
eligible for cost-sharing). Second by Howard Kroll. Motion failed 2-7, with J. LaBonte and H. Kroll 
voting in favor. C. Deschene asked if the Committee had just voted against safety improvements. 



E. Barrett stated that the committee did not vote against safety improvements, but voted against 
using funds set aside for signal improvements, with the reminder that ATRC does have a post of 
funds available for pedestrian/sidewalk/crosswalk improvements, and that any potential project be 
submitted to the Technical Committee for scoring/consideration. 
 
E. Barrett noted that there will be no action requested for items 6 through 8; these will be 
discussion only today, with an additional meeting on November 7th for action. 
 

6. ATRC 20-Year Transportation Plan 
Staff is currently updating the ATRC Long Range Transportation Plan. This is a 20-year plan, 
updated every five years, and is due to be updated by December 31, 2013. MAP-21 is requiring 
that long range plans address performance targets, to be established by the MPO to coordinate 
with State and Federal performance measures. ATRC is slightly ahead of the State on the 
updating scheduling; FHWA has not yet provided guidance on these performance measures, and 
the State has not developed their performance targets. At this time, staff is recommending that 
ATRC complete a minor technical update of our long range plan, to remain in compliance, with a 
more in-depth update to be undertaken after the State has developed their performance targets. 
Part of this minor update includes revising the enclosed list of projects which can realistically be 
funded based on anticipated revenues over the next 20 years. Jennifer Williams led the 
Committee through the list of projects, with discussion as needed. The Downtown Connector 
should be eliminated from the list. S. Devlin stated that the list includes three projects that are 
MTA funds, and that this minor technical update should include reference to the MTA as part of 
the funding. E. Barrett stated that staff is asking for comments/suggestions back. C. Deschene 
asked that the recommendations from the New Auburn Study be included. A. Gilmore asked for 
clarification of the minor technical update with a 20-year project horizon. B. Thompson stated that 
this is a “best guess” of projects anticipated to be funded in the next 20 years, and that the plan 
can be amended as needed. Staff asked to have comments back within one week. 
 

7. 2014-2015 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)  
The Draft 2014-2015 UPWP was developed in March/April, based on input from the communities. 
Staff has added a couple of tasks for consideration as well, including 1) the potential for the 
development of a Complete Streets Best Standards and Practices Manual, as identified by the 
joint Lewiston-Auburn Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee; 2) study of the urban core sections of 
Center Street, Minot Avenue, Lisbon Street, Main Street, Russell Street, and Sabattus Street, 
with a goal to find adequate space for bicycles and pedestrians to safely access all of the 
resources on these streets (based on comments from the update of the ATRC Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Plan).   
J. LaBonte noted that we could contract with BCM to do some of the education component, since 
they are on MaineDOT’s pre-qualified list. Nancy Grant stated the need to educate city staff 
involved in the public r/w to develop a “trigger list” of utilities, etc. and the opportunity/required 
time to implement a complete streets policy. J. LaBonte stated there is a 3:1 discrepancy of staff 
to consultant work. PACTS has already done significant work and this is a lot of money to help 
Auburn on the land use side; there needs to be more discussion of the appropriate scope to 
accomplish more with outside expertise. B. Thompson stated that is what is happening. J. 
LaBonte asked if ATRC contracts with AVCOG. B. Thompson said yes. J. LaBonte noted that 
PACTS has recently completed an organizational effectiveness review that suggested dedicating 
more funds to outside expertise.  S. Devlin noted that PACTS recent transition to a TMA and 
addition of more communities led to the organizational study, which didn’t indicate anything earth 
shattering for recommendations, other than there is always room for some change/improvement. 
J. LaBonte noted that ATRC is “supposed” to be the transportation planning arm of the region, yet 
there is also LATC, LARC, the Airport, the Bike-Ped Committee; we should revisit how we are 
staffed and organized. J. LaBonte will submit a request in writing.  B. Thompson indicated this 
could well be part of the discussion of the upcoming full revision of the long range transportation 
plan. J. LaBonte reiterated his preference for outside expertise. B. Thompson confirmed that the 



PACTS assessment was due to the additional towns, and he is not sure that an entirely separate 
task is needed here. 
J. LaBonte questioned the use of FTA money for operational vs. planning, stating that the Auburn 
council has a strong interest in identifying who operates the system and who is responsible, since 
there are no contracts. Marsha Bennett and P. Nadeau both clarified that there is a contract 
between LATC and AVCOG. J. LaBonte asked what component of ATRC money is spent to 
support operations of LATC? Both cities passed a resolve to move forward to working with 
Portland on commuter transit, PACTS staff has a task in their proposed UPWP, but nothing here. 
C. Pena stated that the FTA money is used for planning purposes. J. LaBonte assured him that 
ATRC money is being used to support operations of LATC and he will follow up separately. 
 

8. Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Plan 
A public meeting for the updated ATRC Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Plan was held in July, 
and the plan has been through two rounds of public comment, one prior to the public meeting, 
and one in September. The Plan and accompanying maps are available for download on the 
ATRC web page, www.atrcmpo.org.  Nancy Grant stated that the plan has a lot of strengths, but 
not a lot of hard recommendations; it needs more teeth. She asked how the L/A Complete Streets 
policy will be integrated, since there is so much overlap. E. Barrett noted that the specific function 
of the joint bike/ped committee will be to review capital plans for adherence to the complete 
streets policy for bike/ped accommodations. He also noted that the updated inventory will be part 
of the GIS data that is available to both cities staff. C. Deschene noted that a public transparency 
piece seems to be missing. The joint bike/ped committee is close to adopting a policy/manual. 
The cities should take the inventory, and combine that with the standards so that we have a 
formal list of projects in the plan, and ATRC should prioritize the bigger regional issues. Joan 
Walton noted that the ATRC priorities may well differ from the individual City priorities. E. Barrett 
noted that the policy has been adopted by the cities, and that priorities are typically based on the 
schedule of upcoming work. C. Deschene noted that we may need to do more work upfront so we 
can complete the projects. B. Thompson noted that ATRC has made a strong effort to ensure that 
the TIP scoring included scoring reflective of the bike/ped plan. C. Deschene said we need a 
regional/joint level of planning; for example, he doesn’t want Auburn to invest money on one side 
of the bridge if Lewiston is never going to do anything on the other side. E. Barrett noted that with 
two separate governing bodies we will likely never get full coordination, but that the joint 
committees of ATRC, etc. will help lead to full implementation.  
Motion by Jonathan LaBonte to approve the Bicycle/Pedestrian Plan. Second by Steve Eldridge. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

9. Lewiston Downtown Neighborhood Circulation Study 
Gorrill-Palmer has completed the Lewiston Downtown Neighborhood Circulation Study. The study 
is available at www.atrcmpo.org. Lewiston is incorporating some of the recommendations into 
their capital planning, with some additional discussion on other recommendations (such as the 
removal of traffic signals).  Motion by Steve Eldridge to accept the study. Second by Phil Nadeau. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
10. Current UPWP Studies/Tasks Update 

 New Auburn Study – The steering committee is meeting again 10/24/13 to finalize 
scenarios/alternatives to evaluate with economic development data; there will be one to 
two more public meetings. 

 TDL – This is an ongoing task. Staff has identified in GIS the know deficiencies, volumes, 
priority corridors, signage, routes, etc. Staff is researching Freight Village models, and 
working with a steering committee to oversee surveys/data collection efforts. The sample 
survey will be looking at safety/necessity/opportunities, as well as workforce development 
(through CMCC, CEI, AVCOG). 

  

http://www.atrcmpo.org/
http://www.atrcmpo.org/


 
11. Other Business 

 FTA 5307 Funds – LATC will be coming forth with a request to reallocation ~ $97,000 in 
5207 funds. It has recently been determined that WMTS, as well as YCCA and RTP, are 
not eligible to receive 5307 money. MaineDOT is working with the agencies affected, and 
that money will need to come back through ATRC to be reallocated. 

 Androscoggin, Oxford and Coos Counties Rail Corridor Committee – There has been a 
request made for support of a Night Train (Hotel Train). The Chamber and the City of 
Lewiston have provided a letter of support. Should ATRC submit a letter of support? C. 
Deschene noted that a larger group of stakeholders have been asked for their support, to 
provide more validity to the commitments. He has a concern of backing something that 
has nothing behind it. B. Thompson noted that the draft support letter is basically saying 
“yes, this is a good idea” with nothing more than that. J. LaBonte does not want to apply 
undue pressure to St. Lawrence & Atlantic RR. E. Barrett asked if we should weigh in or 
not; not yet. 

 Route 4 – the overlay/restriping to 5 lanes is the first priority for Spring 2014, with the PE 
of the roundabouts to follow. 

 Jennifer Williams noted the need for a change in project limits for the Riverside Drive 
project. Per correspondence from the City, the project will run from Vickery Rd to Dunn St. 
J. LaBonte stated the project is only Dunn St to Oak Hill Cemetery. Jennifer was 
instructed to confirm the project limits with Dan Goyette. Motion by Phil Nadeau to modify 
the project limits, as confirmed with City staff. Second by Steve Eldridge. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
12. Upcoming Meetings 

Technical Committee:  November 14, 2013 
Policy Committee:  November 7, 2013 
  

 Adjournment – 12:10 PM 
 



 

City  Of  Auburn  

985  Turner  Stree t  

 

 

TO:   Clint Deschene, City Manager  

FROM: Tim Holden, General Manager 

RE:   NSBA Quarterly Review 

DATE: October 23, 2014 

CC:   Denis D’Auteuil, Public Services Director 

 

This report highlights the accomplishments and progress that the Norway Savings Bank Arena 

Staff has achieved over the past months.  When I had arrived at Norway Savings Bank Arena with 

Jason Paquin, we decided to learn the building and staff over a two (2) month time period.  We 

quickly noticed the need for retraining in operation of the ice resurfacer and daily operational tasks.  

The quality of the ice has vastly improved as a result of this along with controlling the access to the 

refrigeration plant, increasing hot water temperatures, adjustment of ice temperatures, ambient air 

temperatures, humidity levels, ice maintenance, and blade changing frequency. 

 In terms of advertising within the building, wall advertisements have been re-organized to bring 

a cleaner appearance and symmetry to the area.  Multiple dasher board advertisements have also 

been replaced due to normal wear and tear.  Extensive time has been put into meeting with current 

advertisers to satisfy existing contracts, as well as maintain relationships.  New partnerships have 

been formed with Applebee’s, Saint Dominic’s Academy, and AAA Northern New England.  Our 

timely response to issues that have been brought to our attention has been warmly received.  This 

past fall, we took the opportunity to repaint Rink #1 for advertising purposes as well. 

 We have developed a part-time staffing model that has allowed us to reduce our labor cost.  We 

currently have one (1) full-time employee and four (4) part-time employees that help to maintain the 

ice and cleaning of the building.  We have also developed a more professional appearance for our 

staff by providing new uniform jackets that can only be obtained by arena staff. 

 The main lobby area has seen some changes including a new office space for staff, relocation of 

a television for locker room assignments and scheduling, and the addition of cable to two (2) 

televisions.  We have also had our wireless internet connection repaired so that guests of the arena 

may have a trouble free connection.  Rink #2 now has a cleaner look after the removal of the bank of 

lockers at the front of the building and the removal of the five (5) gallon buckets that were being 

utilized as skating aids.  The arena has purchased and now provides proper skating aids for public 

skating events. 

 Currently, Skate rentals are operated by Penalty Box Inc. per their contract as well as the 

vending machines and video games.  An abundance of arena glass has been relocated to the inside of 

the facility and has been stored with a wall anchoring system.  A moisture issue in the locker room 



  

  

 

 

 

area has been remedied by having the refrigeration plant re-configured to provide air conditioning 

and heating to the area.  This was a necessity as the moisture could have caused severe building 

issues in the future.  Time of day clocks have also been installed under the scoreboards of both 

arenas and are utilized to regulate ice rentals.  This allows for the larger scoreboard to remain off 

except for when games are being played. 

 The format in which we schedule ice has been changed to provide more rental opportunities.  

This was achieved by changing our ice resurfacing times from fifteen (15) minutes to ten (10) 

minutes (Industry Standard). This also allowed us to gain an extra hour of ice availability per day. 

Our scheduling program is now operating as intended that allows us to utilize video boards for 

locker room assignments and off premises scheduling.  We have also worked with Preferred 

Mechanical to gain remote access to our refrigeration plant.  This allows the management staff to 

monitor, troubleshoot and make necessary changes from a lap top which cuts down response time 

significantly.   

 The Maine Gladiators Youth hockey program now utilizes the Norway Savings Bank Arena as 

its only ice facility.  We also hosted a week long training camp for the Gladiators organization in 

August and plans to continue this program are in place as well as expand this to a three (3) week 

camp.  The addition of a Midget level Showcase that was held over Labor Day Weekend also shows 

growth potential.  Currently, a High School Hockey Holiday Invitational is being developed with 

five (5) Maine schools already committed.  This event will span two (2) days and will be expanded 

to out-of state teams next year.  This event gives us a chance to showcase the capabilities of the 

facility and staff as well as the talent located in the surrounding area.  A total of five (5) tournaments 

have been added to this season’s schedule, two (2) in February and three (3) in March.  We are also 

currently working on a Youth Tournament for early October. With the addition of Scarborough High 

School, and a Monday night men’s league utilizing the facility for practices and games, the winter 

schedule for the arena has been completed and spring scheduling has begun. All of the peak season 

prime time ice is rented. 

Looking ahead to the spring, we are hoping to add a 3 vs 3 league for youth and high school players. 

Summer camps are a high priority as well. Plans are currently under way for programming and staff. 

Finally, we have plans to implement a Learn to Skate program for kids ages two (2) to five (5) years 

old during the work week. Norway Savings Bank Arena and Auburn Parks and Rec have already 

agreed on a spring, summer, and fall schedule for the figure skating groups. 

 



LATC/citylink Update 

  

“New” Buses 

     LATC recently purchased three used buses to stabilize 
the fleet 
-     2 2005 Chevrolet Eldorado Buses $18,995/bus 
-     1 2006 Champion Challenger $24,680 

  

Ridership 

     citylink ridership for FY2014 saw a 5.7% increase over 
FY2013. Ridership for 2014 totaled 372,864 passenger 
trips 

     citylink ridership has increased each year since 2010 
-     FY2014 372,864 5.7% increase 
-     FY2013 352,923 0.7% increase 
-     FY2012 350,604 22.9% increase 
-     FY2011 285,209 19.3% increase  

  

Vehicle Maintenance 

     Since 2012, WMTS has been sending all owned and 
operated vehicles to outside vendors for the annual 
Maine State Safety Inspection.  This allows for 
independent inspections by certified Maine State Safety 
Inspection Mechanics of repairs done by WMTS 
maintenance staff. 

     WMTS has worked closely with MDOT staff and bus 
maintenance consultants to improve vehicle maintenance 
procedures and record keeping  and documentation of 
completed maintenance since August 2013.  In 
September 2014, MDOT notified WMTS that the 
improvements implemented were sufficient to release 
WMTS from continuous oversight of maintenance 
procedures.  As is normal procedure for all State and 
Federally funded transit providers, WMTS will still 
undergo routine maintenance reviews. 

     WMTS has developed alliances with other transit 
providers nationwide to increase problem solving, parts 
related issues, and other matters prevalent to transit 
buses that each agency has in common. 

     WMTS has provided and/or taken advantage of training 
opportunities for WMTS maintenance personnel including 
but not limited to electronics and electrical systems, brake 



systems, and HVAC systems.  WMTS also employees an 
ASE certified Transit Bus Master Technician. 

     Since WMTS has improved maintenance procedures, 
there has been a decrease in road calls and towing 
incidents.  There has not been any need to tow a vehicle 
into the shop in over three months. 

     WMTS has increased staff in the maintenance 
department from four fulltime to seven fulltime and one 
part-time employee, allowing for more through 
inspections, cleaning, and attention to vehicle repairs. 

     Through ongoing DVIR trainings WMTS driving 
personnel have become better at reporting vehicle 
concerns which allows maintenance staff to address 
small issues before they become larger issues. 

     As a private operator and with changes in FMSCA rules 
and regulations, WMTS now also falls under the 
jurisdiction of Maine Public Safety as well as the MDOT 
and FTA.  This is different than vehicles operating with 
municipal plates that do not undergo inspections by 
Maine Public Safety.  WMTS underwent a Maine Public 
Safety inspection which included seven of the eleven 
LATC owned vehicles.   

  

Public Notification 

The Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee is encouraging citylink 

passengers to sign up through the “Notify Me” section on its 

www.purplebus.org web site to receive citylink service updates 

either by email and/or text message.  

 

https://mail.ci.auburn.me.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=403cd81449ae4a4284958b7f81cefe0b&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.purplebus.org




Appendix B 
Effective:  10/01/14 to 09/30/15 

 B-1 Prepared by MMA - 6/2013 

   

Food Maximums 
 

Please Note:  The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the 

U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan. Through October 1, 2014, those amounts are: 

 

 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 

   

1 45.12 194 

2 83.02 357 

3 118.84 511 

4 150.93 649 

5 179.30 771 

6 215.12 925 

7 237.67                  1,022 

8 271.86 

 

                 1,169 

   

 

 

Note:  For each additional person add $146 per month. 

 

 

 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/14-10/01/15 

 C-1 Prepared by MMA – 9/2014 

   

GA Housing Maximums 
(Heated & Unheated Rents) 

     

NOTE: NOT ALL MUNICIPALITIES SHOULD ADOPT THESE SUGGESTED 

HOUSING MAXIMUMS!  Municipalities should ONLY consider adopting the following 

numbers, if these figures are consistent with local rent values.  If not, a market survey should be 

conducted and the figures should be altered accordingly. The results of any such survey must be 

presented to DHHS prior to adoption. Or, no housing maximums should be adopted and 

eligibility should be analyzed in terms of the Overall Maximum—Appendix A. (See Instruction 

Memo for further guidance.) 
 

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 

Aroostook County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 84 362 

           84                   362 

 99 426 

 134 575 

 143 614 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 107 461 

 113 487 

 136 584 

 179 770 

 197 848 

   

Franklin County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 96 412 

 97 418 

 115 493 

 137 591 

 210 905 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 119 511 

 124 533 

 151 651 

 183 786 

 265 1,139 

   

Hancock County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 105 451 

 117 503 

 145 622 

 197 845 

 197 845 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 126 543 

 145 625 

 180 776 

 241 1,038 

 245 1,054 

   

Kennebec County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 83 359 

 94 404 

 123 529 

 159 685 

 159 685 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 106 457 

 123 530 

 160 686 

 203 872 

 214 920 

   



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/14-10/01/15 

 C-2 Prepared by MMA – 9/2014 

   

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 

   

Knox County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 128 552 

 128 552 

 150 645 

 197 846 

 209 899 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 151 649 

 151 651 

 186 799 

 240 1,032 

 272 1,168 

   

Lincoln County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 119 513 

 124 535 

 159 684 

 200 862 

 207 889 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 140 600 

 153 659 

 195 838 

 244 1,048 

 260 1,118 

   

Oxford County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 89 382 

 101 434 

 113 487 

 161 693 

 216 928 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 114 491 

 126 542 

 153 657 

 209 900 

 274 1,179 

   

Piscataquis County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 98 421 

 108 465 

 134 575 

 172 740 

 176 759 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 111 479 

 125 539 

 154 663 

 196 844 

 205 881 

   

Somerset County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 100 432 

 100 432 

 116 498 

 166 714 

 166 714 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 123 529 

 127 548 

 152 655 

 210 904 

 211 908 

   

 

 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/14-10/01/15 

 C-3 Prepared by MMA – 9/2014 

   

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 

   

Waldo County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly     Monthly 

        116                      497 

        119                      510 

        139                      597  664 

        174                      749 

        176                      758 

Heated 

 Weekly             Monthly 

        136                    583 

        144                    619 

        174                    748 

        217                    935 

        230                    987 

   

Washington County 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly     Monthly 

          93                       402 

          95                       410 

        108                       465 

        134                       575 

        163                       703 

Heated 

 Weekly             Monthly 

        114                    492 

        122                    525 

        146                    629 

        182                    782 

        222                    954 

 

Metropolitan FMR Areas 

Bangor HMFA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

       101  432 

       120                     518   

       145  625 

       184                     790 

       210                     904 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 126                       543 

 153                       657  

  185    796 

 233  1,004 

       268  1,154 

   

Penobscot County HMFA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

  99  424 

        99  424 

      104                      448 

      148     636 

      169  725 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

       122                       525 

 122    525 

 144   621 

 198  850 

 228   982 

   

Lewiston/Auburn MSA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

   89                     381 

       103     445 

       139                     597 

       178  766 

  180  774 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

      111                       476  412 

 132                       566 

      175                       751 

 221                        952 

      233                      1,003 

 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/14-10/01/15 

 C-4 Prepared by MMA – 9/2014 

   

Metropolitan FMR Areas 

   

Portland HMFA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 142 611 

 166 715 

 214 922 

 271 1165 

 274 1180 

Heated 

 Weekly             Monthly 

 163 702 

 194 833 

 252 1,085 

 319 1,371 

 339 1,458 

   

York/Kittery/S. Berwick 

HMFA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 181 779  671 

 181 779 

 206 887 

 314                  1,350 

        334                  1,434 

 

Heated 

 Weekly              Monthly 

 207 890 

 207 890 

 247 1,060 

 364 1,564 

 394 1,694 

   

Cumberland County HMFA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 111 479 

 131 563 

 167 720 

 228 982 

 271 1167 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 133 573 

 157 674 

 204 876 

 272 1,168 

 324 1,394 

   

Sagadahoc County HMFA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 140 603 

 140 603 

 155 667 

 192 825 

 276 1,187 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 161 693 

 161 693 

 191 821 

 242 1,039 

 336 1,444 

   

York County HMFA 

Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 126 541 

 126 541 

 156 672 

 216 928 

 216 928 

Heated 

 Weekly Monthly 

 146 629 

 150 646 

 192 825 

 259 1,114 

 266 1,143 

   

 



 

GENERAL ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE 

APPENDICES B & C 

2014-2015 
 

 

 

The Municipality of Auburn, Maine adopts the MMA Model Ordinance 

GA Appendices B & C for the period of October1, 2014 to September 

30, 2015.  These appendices are filed with the Department of Health and 

Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with Title 22 M.R.S.A. 

§4305(4). 

 

Signed the ______ (day) of __________________ (month)______ (year) 

by the municipal officers: 

 

Councilor Tizz E. H. Crowley       ___________________________ 

       (Signature) 

Councilor Mary K. LaFontaine   ___________________________ 

       (Signature) 

Councilor Leroy Walker     ___________________________ 

       (Signature) 

Councilor Adam Lee    ___________________________ 

       (Signature) 

Councilor Robert Hayes   ___________________________ 

       (Signature) 

Councilor David Young    ___________________________ 

       (Signature) 

Councilor Belinda A. Gerry   ___________________________ 

       (Signature) 

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

           

ORDINANCE  09-10202014 

 
ORDERED, that the General Assistance Ordinance be amended to incorporate the following maximum levels 

of assistance to be effective on and after October 1, 2014 as follows:   

 

Appendix B, Food Assistance  

 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 

   

1 45.12 194 

2 83.02 357 

3 118.84 511 

4 150.93 649 

5 179.30 771 

6 215.12 925 

7 237.67                  1,022 

8 271.86 

 

                 1,169 

 

 

Appendix C, Housing Maximums  

 

 

 

 

Lewiston/Auburn MSA 
Bedrooms 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Unheated 
 Weekly Monthly 

   89                     381 

       103     445 

       139                     597 

       178  766 

  180  774 

Heated 
 Weekly Monthly 

      111                       476  412 

 132                       566 

      175                       751 

 221                        952 

      233                      1,003 





MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Mayor LaBonte; Auburn City Council 
From: Eric Cousens, Director, Auburn Planning and Permitting Department 
Date: November 3, 2014 
RE: Dangerous Building Hearing for 33 South Goff Street, Auburn, Maine 
 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council, 
 
 At the Council meeting on November 3, I will present evidence as to why 33 South Goff 
Street is a dangerous building within the meaning of 17 M.R.S. § 2851.  I will request that the 
Council find that this property is a dangerous building and order that it be demolished. 
 
 To assist your decision I have included the following materials for each property: 

• tity of the current owner; 
• The Notice of 

Documents establishing the iden
Hearing and proof of service on the owners and any party in 

interest; 
citations to the owner;  

Photographs depicting the dila
tiary evidence regarding the building; and 

Proposed Order. 

• Previous correspondence, notices, or 
• pidation at the property; 
• Other eviden
• 

 



chris
Rounded Exhibit Stamp





chris
Rounded Exhibit Stamp



chris
Rounded Exhibit Stamp









chris
Rounded Exhibit Stamp





zlenhert
Text Box
EXHIBIT    E

zlenhert
Oval





From: Codecompliance
To: Zachary Lenhert; 
Subject: RE: Notice of Violation,  33 South Goff St., Auburn,  Maine 04210
Date: Thursday, December 19, 2013 2:12:07 PM

This is to confirm your email was received.  Thank you. 
 
 
Ashley DeBose
Code Compliance Specialist      
Safeguard Properties           
O: 800.852.8306 x 8484 
2400 Lakeside Blvd #300     
Richardson, TX 75082         
Seat Location: 239    
codecompliance@safeguardproperties.com            
www.safeguardproperties.com    
Customer Service = Resolution®        
Safeguarding our clients' interests.   
 
 
 

From: Zachary Lenhert [mailto:zlenhert@auburnmaine.gov]  
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 1:49 PM 
To: Codecompliance 
Cc: Hal Barter 
Subject: Notice of Violation, 33 South Goff St., Auburn, Maine 04210
 
Hello,
 
Attached you will find a “Notice of Violation” for the property at 33 South Goff 
Street in Auburn, ME 04210.  Pictures of unsecured entries are also attached.  
Please secure ALL points of entry and “board-up” all windows on the first floor to 
prevent future break-ins.  The fire risk has been deemed high by the Fire 
Prevention Officer and requires immediate attention. 
 
The Safeguard ID# for this property is 137172333
 
Thank you,

mailto:Codecompliance@safeguardproperties.com
mailto:/O=CITY OF AUBURN/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=Zachary Lenherta70
mailto:codecompliance@safeguardproperties.com
http://www.safeguardproperties.com/
zlenhert
Text Box
EXHIBIT     F

zlenhert
Oval



 

Zack Lenhert
Code Compliance Officer
Assessing & Planning Assistant
City of Auburn
60 Court Street
Auburn, ME 04210
(207) 333-6601 Ext. 1150
zlenhert@auburnmaine.gov
 
Please be advised that email communications sent to or received from City employees are subject to the Freedom 
of Access Act and may become part of public record or shared with the media.

 
PRIVILEGE & CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail and any 
attachments or links contained herein may contain information that is 
privileged, confidential, or proprietary. Any review, disclosure, copying, 
distribution, or use of the contents of this e-mail or any attachments is 
strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, or received this in 
error, please delete it immediately and contact the sender. Thank you. 

mailto:zlenhert@auburnmaine.gov


zlenhert
Text Box
EXHIBIT     G

zlenhert
Oval



























zlenhert
Text Box

zlenhert
Text Box
EXHIBIT      H

zlenhert
Oval







zlenhert
Text Box
   EXHIBIT         I











CITY OF AUBURN CITY COUNCIL 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

AND ORDER OF DEMOLITION 
 

33 SOUTH GOFF STREET 
 

 On November 3, 2014 at 7:00 pm, the Auburn City Council held a hearing at 60 Court 
Street in Auburn, Maine to determine whether the residential structure (the “Structure”) at 33 
South Goff Street in Auburn, Maine, identified as Lot 275 on Tax Map 240, and further 
described in the deed recorded in the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds at Book 2795, 
Page 326 (the “Premises”), is dangerous or a nuisance pursuant to 17 M.R.S. § 2851.  As such, 
the Council makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law, and orders that the 
Structure be demolished. 
 

Findings of Fact 
Present at the hearing on this matter for the City was Eric Cousens, City Planner.  The 

following individuals appeared on behalf of the owner and/or parties in interest: 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

 
After considering the testimony and evidence presented, the City Council makes the 

following findings of fact: 
1. The Premises and Structure are owned by Edward L. Gilbert and/or his unknown heirs 

(the “Owner”).  Planning, Permitting & Code Department (“Department”) Exhibit A. 
2. As Mr. Gilbert is believed to be deceased, and his heirs were not readily ascertainable 

with due diligence, the Owner was served with the notice required by 17 M.R.S. § 2851 (the 
“Notice”) by publication in the Lewiston Sun Journal on October 8, 15, and 22, 2014, pursuant to 
17 M.R.S. § 2851(2).  Department Exhibit C. 

3. Party-in-Interest Bank of America, NA was served with a copy of the Notice on October 
7, 2014.  Department Exhibit D. 

4. A copy of that Notice was also recorded in the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds 
at Book 9017 and Page 78.  Planning Department Exhibit B. 

5. The Structure is structurally unsafe and unstable. 
6. The Structure is abandoned and is unfit for human occupancy due to extensive water 

damage, mold growth, structural damage, the separation of an addition from the main part of the 
Structure, a crumbling foundation and damage to the interior. 

7. The Structure is unsanitary due to mold growth and exposure to the elements. 
8. The Structure has not been maintained. 
9. The Structure poses a significant fire threat to itself and to neighboring residences due to 

its state of decline, its abandonment, and its attractiveness to vandals. 
10. The Owner has been given the opportunity to remedy the conditions at the Premises but 

has failed to do so. 
 

Conclusions of Law 
Applying the legal standards set forth in 17 M.R.S. § 2851, the Auburn City Council reaches the 
following conclusions of law: 
 

1 
 



2 
 

11. The Structure is structurally unsafe and unstable. 
12. The Structure is unsanitary. 
13. The Structure constitutes a fire hazard. 
14. The Structure is unsuitable and improper for human habitation. 
15. The Structure is a hazard to health and safety because of inadequate maintenance, 

dilapidation, obsolescence and abandonment. 
16. The Structure is dangerous to life and property. 

 
Any one of these conclusions would be sufficient to support a finding that the Structure is a 
nuisance and is a dangerous building, and the Council hereby concludes that the Structure at 33 
South Goff Street is a nuisance and a dangerous building within the meaning of 17 M.R.S. § 
2851.  
 

Order 
 Having found that the Structure at 33 South Goff Street is a nuisance and a dangerous 
building within the meaning of 17 M.R.S. § 2851, the Auburn City Council hereby ORDERS: 
 

17. That the Owner, and/or his successors or assigns, demolish the Structure, remove all 
debris, and stabilize the site within thirty (30) days of service of this Order. 

18. That if the Owner, and/or his successors or assigns, fails to comply with this Order in the 
time frame set forth herein, the City shall have the authority to carry out this Order. 

19. That within thirty (30) days after demand by the City, the Owner, and/or his successors or 
assigns, shall reimburse the City for all expenses it incurs in connection with this proceeding, 
including, but not limited to, expenses for securing and maintaining the Structure, service and 
other costs incurred, attorneys’ fees, and any and all demolition and clean-up costs. 

20. That if the Owner, and or his successors and assigns, fails to timely reimburse the City 
for the expenses provided for above, the City shall assess a special tax against the Premises, as 
provided for in 17 M.R.S. § 2853 and/or recover its costs by means of a collection action. 
 

This decision may be appealed to Superior Court under Maine Rule of Civil Procedure 80B. 
 

 I, Susan Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk for the City of Auburn, certify that on November 
3, 2014, the City of Auburn City Council adopted the above Order. 
 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 Susan Clements-Dallaire 
 City Clerk 
 
STATE OF MAINE 
ANDROSCOGGIN, ss November ___, 2014 
 
 Before me this day personally appeared Susan Clements-Dallaire who acknowledges the 
foregoing instrument to be her free act and deed. 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Notary Public/Attorney at Law 





Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
ORDER 92-11032014 
 

CITY OF AUBURN CITY COUNCIL 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

AND ORDER OF DEMOLITION 
 

33 SOUTH GOFF STREET 
 

 On November 3, 2014 at 7:00 pm, the Auburn City Council held a hearing at 60 Court Street in Auburn, 
Maine to determine whether the residential structure (the “Structure”) at 33 South Goff Street in Auburn, 
Maine, identified as Lot 275 on Tax Map 240, and further described in the deed recorded in the Androscoggin 
County Registry of Deeds at Book 2795, Page 326 (the “Premises”), is dangerous or a nuisance pursuant to 17 
M.R.S. § 2851.  As such, the Council makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law, and orders that 
the Structure be demolished. 
 

Findings of Fact 
Present at the hearing on this matter for the City was Eric Cousens, City Planner.  The following 

individuals appeared on behalf of the owner and/or parties in interest: 
___________________________________________________________________. 

 
After considering the testimony and evidence presented, the City Council makes the following findings 

of fact: 
1. The Premises and Structure are owned by Edward L. Gilbert and/or his unknown heirs (the “Owner”).  

Planning, Permitting & Code Department (“Department”) Exhibit A. 
2. As Mr. Gilbert is believed to be deceased, and his heirs were not readily ascertainable with due 

diligence, the Owner was served with the notice required by 17 M.R.S. § 2851 (the “Notice”) by publication in 
the Lewiston Sun Journal on October 8, 15, and 22, 2014, pursuant to 17 M.R.S. § 2851(2).  Department 
Exhibit C. 

3. Party-in-Interest Bank of America, NA was served with a copy of the Notice on October 7, 2014.  
Department Exhibit D. 

4. A copy of that Notice was also recorded in the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds at Book 9017 
and Page 78.  Planning Department Exhibit B. 

5. The Structure is structurally unsafe and unstable. 
6. The Structure is abandoned and is unfit for human occupancy due to extensive water damage, mold 

growth, structural damage, the separation of an addition from the main part of the Structure, a crumbling 
foundation and damage to the interior. 

7. The Structure is unsanitary due to mold growth and exposure to the elements. 
8. The Structure has not been maintained. 
9. The Structure poses a significant fire threat to itself and to neighboring residences due to its state of 

decline, its abandonment, and its attractiveness to vandals. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

10. The Owner has been given the opportunity to remedy the conditions at the Premises but has failed to 
do so. 

 
Conclusions of Law 

Applying the legal standards set forth in 17 M.R.S. § 2851, the Auburn City Council reaches the following 
conclusions of law: 
 

11. The Structure is structurally unsafe and unstable. 
12. The Structure is unsanitary. 
13. The Structure constitutes a fire hazard. 
14. The Structure is unsuitable and improper for human habitation. 
15. The Structure is a hazard to health and safety because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, 

obsolescence and abandonment. 
16. The Structure is dangerous to life and property. 

 
Any one of these conclusions would be sufficient to support a finding that the Structure is a nuisance and is a 
dangerous building, and the Council hereby concludes that the Structure at 33 South Goff Street is a nuisance 
and a dangerous building within the meaning of 17 M.R.S. § 2851.  
 

Order 
 Having found that the Structure at 33 South Goff Street is a nuisance and a dangerous building within 
the meaning of 17 M.R.S. § 2851, the Auburn City Council hereby ORDERS: 
 

17. That the Owner, and/or his successors or assigns, demolish the Structure, remove all debris, and 
stabilize the site within thirty (30) days of service of this Order. 

18. That if the Owner, and/or his successors or assigns, fails to comply with this Order in the time frame 
set forth herein, the City shall have the authority to carry out this Order. 

19. That within thirty (30) days after demand by the City, the Owner, and/or his successors or assigns, 
shall reimburse the City for all expenses it incurs in connection with this proceeding, including, but not limited 
to, expenses for securing and maintaining the Structure, service and other costs incurred, attorneys’ fees, and 
any and all demolition and clean-up costs. 

20. That if the Owner, and or his successors and assigns, fails to timely reimburse the City for the expenses 
provided for above, the City shall assess a special tax against the Premises, as provided for in 17 M.R.S. § 2853 
and/or recover its costs by means of a collection action. 
 

This decision may be appealed to Superior Court under Maine Rule of Civil Procedure 80B. 
 

 I, Susan Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk for the City of Auburn, certify that on November 3, 2014, the City 
of Auburn City Council adopted the above Order. 
 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 Susan Clements-Dallaire 
 City Clerk 
 
STATE OF MAINE 
ANDROSCOGGIN, ss November ___, 2014 
 
 Before me this day personally appeared Susan Clements-Dallaire who acknowledges the foregoing 
instrument to be her free act and deed. 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Notary Public/Attorney at Law 























Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 93-11032014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a deed for the sale of a portion of 143 

Hampshire Street and 325 Turner Street. 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



























Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 94-11032014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council agree to a $10,000 payment for land acquisition of 261 Main Street.  

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Tizz Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 02-03192012 
 

 
RESOLVE, Supporting the Concept of a Lewiston-Auburn Bike-Ped Committee 
 
Whereas, a significant number of individuals within the Lewiston-Auburn area walk or bike for recreation or 
business; and 
 
Whereas, the presence of bike and pedestrian infrastructure enhances safety and increases the quality of life of 
residents; and 
 
Whereas, such infrastructure also supports economic development efforts by making these communities more 
appealing to those who bike, walk, and run; and 
 
Whereas, the presence of walking and biking amenities also positively affects the value of nearby properties; 
and 
 
Whereas, while sidewalk and biking infrastructure is available in certain areas, improving and extending such 
infrastructures requires a long-range plan as well as monitoring of individual infrastructure projects to ensure 
that they incorporate such a plan; and 
 
Whereas, the goal of developing an appropriate and cost effective bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure can be 
furthered by the creation of a joint Lewiston-Auburn Bike-Ped Committee; 
 
Now, therefore, be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Auburn that the City Council supports the 
concept of a joint Lewiston-Auburn Bike-Ped Committee with the mission, purpose, and structure as outlined 
on the attached Committee description. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tizz Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 

The Lewiston-Auburn Bike-Ped Committee 
 

Mission/Purpose 
 
The mission of the Lewiston-Auburn Bike-Ped Committee is to 

• develop and recommend fiscally responsible policies to the respective governing bodies that take into 
account and support non-motorized transportation in the Twin Cities; 

• advise the respective public works and engineering departments on how non-motorized users can be 
accommodated in street, highway, and open space projects while taking into account the impact of such 
recommendations on project affordability;   

• participate in the Androscoggin Transportation Resource Committee’s update of its regional long-range 
bicycle-pedestrian plan;  

• monitor the implementation of that plan within the Twin Cities; and 
• promote bicycle-pedestrian education. 

 
Composition 
 
The committee will be comprised of 7 voting members: 1 councilor and two Auburn residents appointed by the 
Mayor of Auburn; 1 councilor and two Lewiston residents appointed by the Mayor of Lewiston; and 1 
representative from a local business jointly selected by the Mayors.  Any vacancy on the committee shall be 
filled through an appointment made in the same manner as outlined above.  The Committee shall annually select 
a Chair Person.  In the event that any member is absent for 3 consecutive meetings without being excused by 
the Chair of the Committee, that individual shall forfeit committee membership.  
 
TERM 
 
The Committee shall remain in existence until September 1, 2015.  At least sixty days prior to this date, the 
respective Mayors shall consult and shall make a recommendation to the respective City Councils as to the 
continued existence of the Committee.  If the Mayors fail to make a recommendation, the Committee shall 
continue in existence until one or both Councils take action to either extend its term or discontinue the 
Committee.   
 
STAFF SUPPORT 
 
The City Manager of Auburn and the City Administrator of Lewiston shall each assign a staff member as a 
primary point of contact with the respective municipal organizations.  The Manager and Administrator shall 
provide the Committee with access to other members of the municipal staffs as may be required.   
 
MEETINGS AND REPORTS 
 



Tizz Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

The Committee shall establish the times and places of its meetings, taking care to meet periodically in each 
community.  Meetings shall be open to the public and notice of such meetings shall be posted by the respective 
City Clerks.  The Committee may invite such others as may be knowledgeable regarding bike and pedestrian 
issues to provide information for their consideration.  The Committee shall prepare summaries of its meetings 
and shall make them available to the elected officials of both communities.   
 
Outcomes/Specific Activities:  
 
The L-A Bike-Ped Committee would achieve its mission through the following: 
 

• Serving as the primary resource representing Lewiston and Auburn in the update of the ATRC Regional 
Long-Range Bicycle-Pedestrian Plan; 

• Developing and recommending policies and ordinances for passage by the City Councils in support of 
non-motorized transportation; 

• Planning and coordinating educational events with local partners such as schools, bicycle shops,  and 
biking and run/walk events; 

• Assessing and commenting on existing transportation projects in regard to bicycle and pedestrian 
accommodations including ATRC approved projects, municipally initiated projects, and improvements 
originating from Traffic Movement Permits; and 

• Participating with appropriate city departments and committees in planning coordinated multi-modal 
transportation systems in L-A and the surrounding region to ensure that such systems take into account 
the needs of pedestrians and bicyclists and that motorized and non-motorized systems are well 
coordinated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Passage on 3/19/2012 6-0 (Councilor Hayes was absent). 

 



Tizz Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
          



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE 11-11032014 
 

 
Resolve, Supporting Adding Additional Members to the Lewiston-Auburn Bike-Ped Committee 

 

Whereas, Lewiston and Auburn jointly created a Bike-Ped Committee in 2012; and 

 

Whereas, this Committee has been very active and, among other things, has developed a complete streets 

policy for the cities that was subsequently adopted and has been nationally recognized; and 

 

Whereas, the Committee is actively involved in a variety of projects including the Lewiston Lower Rail Trail, 

the Safe Routes to School Program, and participating in the review of various transportation 

projects; and 

 

Whereas, sufficient interest exists in the Committee that it is recommending that its current voting membership 

be expanded by adding additional residents as well as a representative of an organization with a 

primary interest in the area of health and wellness; and 

 

Now, therefore, be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Auburn that  

 

Subject to the concurrence of the City Council of the City of Lewiston, we support expanding the voting 

membership of the Lewiston-Auburn Bike Ped Committee through adding one more resident of the City of 

Auburn, to be appointed by the Mayor of Auburn, one more resident of the City of Lewiston, to be appointed by 

the Mayor of Lewiston, and a representative of an organization with a primary interest in areas such as health 

and wellness, to be appointed by the Chair of the Committee. 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: 11/3/2014 

 

  Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding a personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(A). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: 11/3/2014 

 

  Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding Economic Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  


	0  Agenda 11-03-2014
	1a  Executive Session info sheet
	1b  Executive Session info sheet
	2  Info Sheet DATC 11032014 Set Hearing Date
	2a  PROJECTED MAXIMUM BUDGET DATC 10302014
	2b  Downtown Auburn Transportation Center Schedule 2014
	2c  AllMaps_ForAgenda
	1_Existing.pdf
	2_2009
	3_Proposal1
	4_NewProposal
	5_NewProposal_ExistingLines

	3  Appropriation Resolve Amendment Resolve final
	3  Info Sheet Expenditure cap
	3  Information Sheet Appropriation Resolve Ordinance Amendment.docx
	3a  budget expenditure cap amendment resolve 110314
	4 Info sheet Wardens and Ward Clerk
	4a  Wardens and Ward Clerks
	7a  Charter - Warden's and Ward Clerk's
	7b  21-A Wardens and Ward Clerks

	4b  Order Wardens and Ward Clerks
	5  Minutes 10-16-2014
	6  Minutes 10-20-2014
	7  Mayor Report Proclamation - Food Day 2014
	8  City Manager Report
	8a  Possible studies from Auburn (2)
	8b  Minutes ATRC Policy Nov 7 2013 - Copy w highlights (2)
	8c  Minutes ATRC Policy Oct 24 2013 - Copy w highlights (2)
	9  NSBA Quarterly Report

	9  City Councilor Report 10-29-14 LATC update
	10  Info sheet GA Maximums
	10a  GA documents
	9a  2014 GA Maximums - Appendix B
	9b  2014 GA Maximums - Appendix C
	9c  ADOPTION FORM for appendices B  C
	9d  Ordinance 09-10202014 appd BC

	11  Info sheet Dangerous building
	11a  City Council Packet_33 South Goff
	01.Cover letter from Eric
	02.Exhibit A--Deed
	03.Exhibit B--Recorded NOH
	04.Exhibit C--Aff of Publication--SunJournal
	05.Exhibit D--ROS for BOA
	06. Exhibit E -- Cristy Email
	RE_ Notice of Violation,  33 South Goff St., Au...
	08. Exhibit G NOV and Citations_33 South Goff
	33 S.Goff_Unsecured Building_12-19-13
	Unsecured Building_First Citation_33 S.Goff_01-02-14
	Unsecured Building_Second Citation_33 S.Goff_01-09-14
	Unsecured Building_Third Citation_33 S.Goff_01-31-14
	Unsecured Building_Fourth Citation_33 S.Goff_02-27-14
	Unsecured Building_Fifth Citation_33 S.Goff_03-12-14

	09. Exhibit H -- Certified Mail Receipts_33 South Goff
	Certified Mail receipt_33 South Goff 1
	Certified Mail receipt_33 South Goff 2
	Certified Mail receipt_33 South Goff 3

	10. Exhibit I Inspection_10-6-14
	11. 33 S. Goff Order

	11b  Notice of Hearing-Dangerous Building
	11c  Order 92-11032014 Dangerous Building 33 S Goff St
	12  Info sheet 325 Turner
	12a  NSP Land Sale 10-2014
	12b  Land Sale Hampshire and Webster 1-2014
	12c  Order 93-11032014 Sale of 325 Turner and 143 Hampshire Streets
	13  Info sheet Main St Land Acquisition
	13a  Main Street Acquisition 22-2014
	13b  Order 94-11032014 261 Main Street
	14  Info sheet Bike Ped
	14a  Bike Ped Committee Orig Res 02-03192012 Bike - Ped Committee
	14b  Resolve 11-11032014 Bike Ped additional members
	15  Executive Session info sheet
	16  Executive Session info sheet



